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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment
risk may be attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor
any obligation to forecast future profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging
nature of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in which the companies operate.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics

of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may
be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM. The principal means of information
dissemination on GEM is publication on the Internet website operated by the Stock Exchange. Listed companies
are not generally required to issue paid announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective
investors should note that they need to have access to the GEM website in order to obtain up-to-date information

on GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss

howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of TeleEye Holdings Limited collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to TeleEye
Holdings Limited. The directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge
and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report
misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration

and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of TeleEye
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”), I hereby present the audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2003
(the “Year”) and summarise the recent development and major

activities of the Group in the Year.

The Year remained challenging to the Group while the global
and local economic situations were still at the low side. Together
with outbreaks of the war in Iraq and the Severe Acute Respiratory
Syndrome (“SARS”) crisis, certain business developments and

operations of the Group were affected.

Despite the impact of poor economic situation, new products
introduced during the Year had received positive responses and
brought satisfactory results to the Group. The rapid advancement of
broadband Internet and digital products brought new opportunities
to the Group, i.e., opening up many new applications for IP based
cameras, video servers and recorders. The Group made use of these
opportunities to develop and launch products addressing the growing
demands. Through persistent efforts, the Group is establishing itself
as one of the premier developers and suppliers of advanced Network

CCTV system and mobile video surveillance solution.

OPERATING RESULTS

For the Year, the Group’s turnover was approximately
HK$26,447,000 (2002: HK$17,005,000), increased by 56%
comparing with last year. The encouraging result was primarily due
to the Group’s global expansion and new product development
efforts. This resulted in a reduction of loss attributable to
shareholders from approximately HK$4,399,000 in 2002 to
approximately HK$1,209,000 in the Year. Basic loss per share was
0.67 HK cent in the Year.

Though the Group received promising results in the nine months
ended 31 March 2003, the Group experienced an exceptional
unsatisfactory result for the quarter ended 30 June 2003 due to the
outbreak of SARS in Asia. The travel warning issued by the World
Health Organisation to Hong Kong brought a halt to most of the
business travel and activities in Hong Kong, which inevitably affected

the Group’s result in the Year.

There was a substantial increase in expenditure of the Group,
especially in staff costs and operating expenses, which were resulted
from the Group’s expansion and set up of overseas offices. However,
the Group believes that its turnover from target markets will continue
to improve particularly with the coming launch of new products

and further penetration into the global markets.
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

To cope with the Group’s global expansion plan, the Group set
up a subsidiary in China aiming at capturing the China’s growing
market opportunities while at the same time reducing costs. TeleEye
Digital Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited (“TeleEye China”)
was set up in Shenzhen Hi-tech Industrial Park and commenced
operation in October 2002. In the first year, TeleEye China focused
on marketing, sales and technical support activities. However, the
business development was slowed down by the outbreak of SARS,
which postponed its participation in major security exhibitions in

Guangzhou and Shanghai.

TeleEye (S) Pte Limited (“TeleEye (S)”) performed well in the
nine months ended 31 March 2003 since the launch of the Group’s
TeleEye III+ VR Video Recording Transmitter (“TeleEye III+ VR”).
Like the Hong Kong and China markets, its sales in the quarter
ended 30 June 2003 was adversely affected by the outbreak of SARS.
In addition to the terrorist attacks in Indonesia, the short-term

outlook for the Singapore market will continue to be challenging.

The Group’s another subsidiary, TeleEye Europe Limited
(“TeleEye Europe”), carried out intensive marketing activities by
launching a nationwide network of “Approved Installer Program”.
Companies in the United Kingdom (“UK”) with expertise in security
system installation were invited to become members and more than
ten approved installers having extensive connection in the market
were appointed. The Group also unveiled its latest products in the
IFSEC 2003 in May, which was one of the major security exhibitions

in Europe.

In the Year, the major breakthrough of CAMERIO Japan Inc.
(“CAMERIO Japan”) was to engage in a development project with
NTT DoCoMo, a telecommunications giant in Japan. The Group
successfully tested the CAMERIO video transmission and recording
products on the mobile network of NTT DoCoMo. An agreement
was signed pursuant to joint promotion of CAMERIO products using
the “Link to DoCoMo” symbol. NTT DoCoMo acknowledged the
full compatibility of CAMERIO products to its mobile service and
started a business development project with CAMERIO Japan. The
Group believes that the project with NTT DoCoMo will make a
great contribution to the Group’s revenue in near future when the

market becomes aware of this application.

PRODUCT LAUNCH

During the Year, the Group launched a series of new products
to meet customers’ demands and further penetrate into the global
market. The products are well received by the market and bring

fruitful results to the Group.
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Video on Network

In addition to the TeleEye III+ VT Video Transmitter (“TeleEye
IIT+ VT”) and TeleEye III+ VR, the Group launched the TeleEye
IIT+ VX Series Video Recording Transmitter (“TeleEye III+ VX”)
and TeleEye III+ NF610 Network Camera (“TeleEye III+ NF610”).

TeleEye III+ VX Series is a range of all-in-one video recording
transmitters with dual composite video outputs and OSD menus for
standalone operations. Its removable hard disk architecture allows
flexible recording space expansion and management. It is designed

to fulfil every contemporary video surveillance requirement.

TeleEye III+ NF610 is a range of network cameras for direct
connection to any existing TCP/IP networks. TeleEye III+ NF610
enables remote video access through the Internet by using standard
web browser. Users can use it to incorporate video to web page and

broadcast video to numerous viewers.

In conjunction with the launch of TeleEye III+ VX and TeleEye
IIT+ NF610, the Group has also reorganised the product models in
the existing TeleEye III+ VR Series. The new models will basically
have the same features and performance as comparing with the old

models but with double recording capacity.

Multi-site Video Monitoring

A one-camera model of TeleEye III+ VT together with 16-site
Reception Software was launched in September 2002. It is a one-
plug module on computer network. Together with the 16-site
Reception Software, it allows users to view and record videos up to
16 remote locations simultaneously from a personal computer within

the network.

Video on Web

A web video development tool for putting TeleEye live videos
on existing web sites, Cyber TeleEye Web Video Solution, was
launched in September 2002. It opens up unlimited video web casting
applications including tourist attraction, traffic monitoring and event

promotion etc.

CCTV Camera

Further to the launch of TeleEye DM326 Colour Pan/Tilt Dome
Camera and a series of colour CCD cameras, the Group enhanced
its camera line with the addition of a speed dome camera series,
TeleEye DM860. Market responses to the TeleEye cameras were
encouraging. The Group will continue to build up its CCTV camera
product line so as to provide a one-stop shop video surveillance

solution to the customers.
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
The Group believes that keeping pace with market trends and
technological advancement is the way to equip the Group in meeting

the challenges ahead. Some of the major developments are:

Mobile Camera

The Group is developing new models of TeleEye III+ NF that
have built-in PCMCIA interface. The new camera can become a
recording and mobile camera. It will be a plug and play camera that
works with web browser or proprietary TeleEye software for

recording and alarm functions. It is expected to be ready by the end
of 2003.

Security Management Solution

The Group has developed the TeleEye Central Monitoring
Station (“TeleEye CMS01”) software, which is specially designed
for central monitoring applications and security management. The
TeleEye CMSO1 has reached the stage of final testing and scheduled
for launching by the end of 2003.

Dialup CCTV
The first prototype of TeleEye dial up CCTV monitoring system

is developed and has reached the final stage of testing.

SALES AND MARKETING

In view of the poor economic environment, the Group had
worked hard to expand market penetration. The Group actively
promoted and marketed its new products by adopting cost-effective
promotion programs like direct mailing and holding seminars to
introduce hottest Network CCTV. Moreover, the Group had
successfully raised the awareness of the TeleEye products by joining
major international trade shows in Germany, Dubai, China and the
UK during the Year. To further extend its distribution network of
TeleEye products in the South and North America, the Group had
appointed two distributors in Mexico and the USA.

To expand the Group’s global distribution network, the Group
had established a nationwide network of approved reseller program,
which had been adopted in the UK, Middle East and China markets.
Companies with expertise in security system installation were invited

to become members of the reseller program.

The Group’s sales and marketing team had visited distributors
and major customers in Europe and Asia. However, the overseas
visits were affected by the outbreak of SARS, which ultimately

affected the sales performance of the Group in the quarter ended 30
June 2003.
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ISO 9001 QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

The Group aims at acquiring ISO 9001 certification in the coming
year. The Group expects to strengthen the management systems,
improve the production process and empower the staff’s spirits in
the pursuit of providing good quality service and operation. All
areas of the Group’s management system will be reviewed.
Improvements and restructuring will be implemented and put into
daily practices. A consulting team will be engaged to go through
the Group’s system for ISO 9001 compliance and finally, the Group
will put themselves for audit by certification body. “Quality” is not
an easy way to go. However, all the staff of the Group is committed

to achieve it as “Quality” is the only way forward.

PROSPECTS

Despite the unfavourable business environment, the Group had
achieved a significant improvement in its turnover comparing with
last year. Looking into the financial year 2003/2004, the Group
foresees a tougher business environment. To sustain our position in
the established markets, the Group will continue to enhance the
Group’s profitability by penetrating into new markets and

maintaining its competitiveness.

To combine the forces and streamline the operations, the Group’s

head office and service centre have been relocated to a new location
with larger floor area in Kwun Tong in August and September 2003,
respectively. The Group expects the integration will enable the Group

to have greater efficiency and better service to the customers.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I would like to express my gratitude to
the management and staff of the Group for their hard work and
dedication particularly in the harsh economic environment. I would
also like to thank our shareholders, business associates, the City
University of Hong Kong, customers and suppliers for their
continuous support. The management and staff will continue to

work diligently to achieve progress and good results.

Dr. Chan Chok Ki
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 10 September 2003
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2003 surged
to approximately HK$26,447,000 (2002: HK$17,005,000),
representing an increase of 56% as compared to the last
corresponding year. On a quarter-to-quarter comparison, turnover
of the Group for the three months ended 30 June 2003 slightly
increased by 2% to approximately HK$5,859,000 when compared
with the same quarter last year. Such increases were mainly due to
deeper market penetration, especially in Hong Kong and Europe.
However, in comparison with the previous quarter ended 31 March
2003, the Group’s turnover for this quarter ended 30 June 2003
decreased by 19% or approximately HK$1,365,000. It was
substantially due to the outbreak of SARS in Asia.

Consequently, loss attributable to shareholders for the year ended
30 June 2003 diminished to approximately HK$1,209,000 as
compared to approximately HK$4,399,000 for the corresponding
year ended 30 June 2002. This encouraging result further proved
the Group’s success in global expansion and advanced product

development strategies.

During the year ended 30 June 2003, TeleEye video surveillance
systems and cameras generated over 90% of the Group’s total
turnover. Due to continuous growing demand in digital video
recorders, the Group recorded strong revenue from TeleEye IIT+
VR, which accounted for approximately 50% (2002: approximately
10% as its debut was in March 2002) of the Group’s total turnover.

Other income significantly dropped by 37% to approximately
HK$435,000, which was mainly attributable to the drop in interest

rate for short-term deposits as well as the Group’s surplus cash.

Total operating costs for the year ended 30 June 2003 were
approximately HK$19,612,000 (2002: HK$17,392,000), representing
a 13% increase. Such increase, in general, was attributable to an
increase in operating expenses, particularly staff costs and rental
expenses, incurred by the new overseas offices which mainly
commenced operations in the second half of the financial year 2002
and in 2003. In addition, for the year ended 30 June 2003, the
commercial sales of TeleEye III+ VR (which was debuted in March
2002) and other newly launched products (as stated in the
Chairman’s Statement) led to a rise in the level of amortisation of
capitalised development costs. On the other hand, during the year
ended 30 June 2003, the Group had been adopting a more cost
effective promotion strategy, like focusing on joint promotion with
distributors/resellers, direct mailing, press release and cold calling,
which favourably resulted in a sharp decrease in advertising and

promotion expenses but an increase in turnover.
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Consistent with the Group’s policy, there was no share of loss of
an associate, namely CAMERIO Japan, as the Group’s accumulated
share of loss had already exceeded its carrying amount of investment
in CAMERIO Japan. For the year ended 30 June 2003, turnover
generated by CAMERIO Japan was increasing while its loss was
diminishing. In view of uncertain market condition in Japan and
the recurring losses of CAMERIO Japan, as at 30 June 2003, the
Board recognised an allowance of approximately HK$131,000 for

the loan made to this associate.

Basic loss per share reduced from 2.44 HK cents for the year
ended 30 June 2002 to 0.67 HK cent for the corresponding year
ended 30 June 2003.

COMMENTS ON SEGMENT INFORMATION
Europe

Europe became the largest market of the Group, whose turnover
for the year ended 30 June 2003 amounted to approximately
HK$8,610,000 (2002: HK$3,664,000) or 33% of the total turnover.
Turnover from Europe significantly increased by approximately
HK$4,946,000 or 135% as compared to last financial year ended 30
June 2002. Such increase was contributed by timely and sufficient
technical and marketing supports made by TeleEye Europe to the
Group’s distributors/approved installers in Europe. Such increase
was also the result of frequent business visits to the Group’s
distributors in the area. Because of extensive marketing efforts in
Europe, this year’s segment result improved by approximately

HK$2,056,000 or 511% to approximately HK$2,458,000.

Hong Kong

Hong Kong was the second largest market of the Group, whose
turnover for the year ended 30 June 2003 amounted to approximately
HK$8,592,000 (2002: HK$5,783,000) or 32% of the total turnover.
Compared with last corresponding year, there was a significant
increase of 49%, which was mainly due to the substantial orders
from project customers, particularly a major telecommunications
operator in Hong Kong using the Group’s products to monitor
telephone exchange centers in Hong Kong. On the other hand, the
Group executed many cost effective ways in promotion, like press
release, direct mailing and cold calling. This resulted in a sharp
increase in segment result of approximately HK$2,446,000 or 131%
to approximately HK$4,310,000.
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Other Asian countries

Turnover from Asia, other than Hong Kong, for the year ended
30 June 2003 largely contributed by the Group’s overseas offices in
Singapore, China and Japan and increased by approximately
HK$1,037,000 or 20% as compared to last year. Such increase was
mainly attributable to the sales in Singapore. During the year,
TeleEye (S) continued to participate actively in market promotion,
especially in arousing market acceptance of the Group’s newly
launched TeleEye III+ VR in Singapore. This year’s segment result
slightly decreased by approximately HK$232,000 or 20% which was
mainly due to the operating costs incurred by the newly established
office in China (as TeleEye China was in full operation since the

second quarter of the financial year 2002/2003).

Others

It was mainly contributed by the Middle East market, of which
turnover was approximately HK$1,444,000 for the year ended 30
June 2003. The next contributor to this segment was North America,
of which turnover was approximately HK$849,000 for the year ended
30 June 2003. Because of increasing market awareness in the Middle
East and North America, both turnover and segment result increased

as compared with last corresponding year.

DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend in

order to retain sufficient cash for future business development (2002:
Nil).

PROSPECTS OF NEW PRODUCTS AND MARKETS
Looking ahead, the Group will aggressively develop advanced
products in network camera, digital video recording and alarm centre
application software to cater for the market demand. The Group
will continuously strengthen its existing markets, particularly in
Europe, and further develop those growing markets, like China and
Middle East. The Group expects these will widen its turnover base

in future.

EMPLOYEES

The Group’s staff costs, including employees’ salaries, directors’
emoluments and retirement benefits scheme contributions, were
approximately HK$12,610,000 for the year ended 30 June 2003 as
compared with that of approximately HK$10,924,000 in last
corresponding year. Such rise was in line with the increase in
headcount of full-time employees from 37 as at 30 June 2002 to 47
as at 30 June 2003. Out of the 10 new employees, 6 are employed

for an overseas office.
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Employees are paid at market remuneration with discretionary
bonus and benefits of medical insurance, retirement benefit schemes,
training and share options. Details of the employee share options

were set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING
RATIO

As at 30 June 2003, the Group continued to obtain a short-term
advance from a minority shareholder to finance the operation of
TeleEye (S), which is denominated in Singapore dollars and repayable
on demand. The advance became non-interest bearing during this

financial year.

Except for the above advance, the Group used substantially its
internal resources and proceeds from listing to finance its operations.
As at 30 June 2003, the Group has available banking facilities of
HK$5,000,000 from Hang Seng Bank but none of them had been
utilised (30 June 2002: Nil). Consequently, the Group did not have
any interest bearing loan as at 30 June 2003 and its gearing ratio, as
a percentage of bank and other borrowings over total assets, as at

30 June 2002 was approximately 1%.

The Group had bank balances, deposits and cash of approximately
HK$19,348,000 as at 30 June 2003 (30 June 2002: HK$22,851,000).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Apart from the aforesaid advance, the Group did not have any

other borrowings during the year under review.

There was no change in the Company’s share capital and
outstanding share options granted under the Company’s share option
schemes during the year ended 30 June 2003, other than the lapse

of certain share options granted upon the resignation of grantees.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Apart from those blue chips securities and bonds acquired in
2001, the Group did not hold any significant investments as at 30
June 2003.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

During the year under review, the Group invested approximately
HK$1,012,000 in TeleEye China and had no other material

acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies.
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CHARGE ON ASSETS
As at 30 June 2003, the Group did not have any charge on its
assets (30 June 2002: Nil).

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Other than those disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated
24 April 2001, the Group does not have any other plan for material

investments or capital assets for the coming year.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES
AND RELATED HEDGES

During the year under review, the Group’s transactions were
substantially denominated in either Hong Kong or US dollars. Since
the Hong Kong dollars are pegged to the US dollars, the Board
considers that the potential foreign exchange exposure of the Group
is limited. During the year under review, the Group did not use any

financial instruments for hedging purposes (30 June 2002: Nil).

The Group closely monitors its foreign currency exposure from
time to time and will engage appropriate hedging activities should

needs arise.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 30 June 2003, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (30 June 2002: Nil).
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The comparison of the Group’s business objectives as set out in
the Prospectus to actual business progress for the six months ended
31 December 2002 has been reported in the interim report during
the year. The comparison for the six months ended 30 June 2003 is

as follows:

BUSINESS OBJECTIVES
SR H R

Product development

JE i % e

e Launch second generation of TeleEAR

o HEHEE i TeleEAR

e Launch web based video recorder

o A R B B

e Launch various versions of improved PDA video reception

software

o fE 2R T TR A B O R B B R RO

e Launch mobile phone video reception software

o ffi H U I R S AR AR 1

e Further improve network based audio reception and recording

system

o E—IB MR MAEEE W BT RS

e Test all existing software products on new operating systems

o TET A AR A B BT A BUA RO E

AR AR P WA R M E —FE A+ A
== H AR E A 2 368 H AR R 2
PBR O Bl i AR B 2 SR A o e
EREZFEARA =+ HIEANE Z T

ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS
T S 5 0 )%

Project is delayed subject to review of market

demand

L LA 5 L T M A7 1095 3 R 2 b

Development of web based video playback function
for TeleEye III+ Video Recording Transmitter

finished and has been included in new products

% TeleEye I+ 305 Sk A5 32X 25 117 5% 1Y 48 4% AL 1%
6 D HE 5 AT C R OB 7 dh

Work finished and has been included in new

products

£ 58 W T AE S 2 0 R T 2

Investigation is commenced on the 3G mobile video

transmission technology

BH 4 BT 8% 56 — A B 7B A AR R 5l

Audio recording function has been incorporated
into the reception software and TeleEye III+ Video

Recording Transmitter

FEOE B D RE O A B A S TeleEye ITT+ 3%
BRARMK

Work finished
58 i L AE
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BUSINESS OBJECTIVES
SEBH R

Product development — continued

JE it B J — A
e Further development in web cameras

o D R R A R R AR 0

e Further development in mobile phone video applications
o E— P ERRULE) E A SR O &

e Commence development of various software and models of the
fourth generation TeleEye

o BEREE R TeleEye o U AU 2 £ Fl Mk 1 K 2 9%

Sale and marketing

B9 45 B i 5 HE B

e Explore the possibility of setting up an office or a joint venture
company in a major city where potential for TeleEye Systems
can be identified

o TECHEE H TeleEye & A 58 1 J1 2 T2 2 3k l7 8% 48 557 Mk <R
B B A SR

e Attend trade fairs and exhibitions in Japan, the UK, the USA and
Hong Kong

o TEHA W - EEEAFEZ MG RERS

e Organise a distributors’ conference to provide technical training,
review marketing plans, sales techniques and resolve any
distribution problems

o ERIES) S T Gk DA B O A~ AR i A o SR ) R A 4
5 Sl i Bl i DRAT AT 5 K o3 5 Y ) R

e Continue to create brand name awareness through promotional
activities such as press conferences, product profile coverage in
trade magazines and by mass media, and advertising in major
trade magazines and mass media

o BME MG E) (B 0 BIRCE I8 e - 1R B 5 ME R RO R
TUHCA B 2 BB AR R S A S R R BT 8
) o AR RS W G AT B N A

ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

Development of TeleEye III+ NF Network Camera
with built-in PCMCIA interface has commenced

O BH 4R %% & N B PCMCIASY T Z TeleEye 111+ NF

Investigation is commenced on the 3G mobile video
transmission technology

BH 4 BT 8% 2 — AU B 7B A AR R 5l

Development of all real time Digital Video Recorder

has commenced

T BR 4 9% R BT A RIVIRF A SRS 5% 15 1

Under the current economic situation, the plan for

setting up new office in other city will be reviewed

1E H AT RS DT - 8% T b wl i At i A
S R R 2 b

Participated in major exhibitions in the UK, Middle
East and China
TE &~ rp R e B 2 R R i B

Technical training, seminars and customer visits

have been conducted

O 4 (5 filr 55 9l B0 B KOG W R E

All the promotional activities have been carried out

as planned especially for the launch of new products

JIT A A > U A BT A T AT 00
15 B O AKRE 8T
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BUSINESS OBJECTIVES
B H R

Sale and marketing — continued

B9 15 B vl 2 HfE B — A

e Visit overseas distributors to review marketing plans, provide
technical training and support

o RIS BT o ARES T R T 5RO Ol B B R SR

Resources deployment

e Increase management, finance and administration staff by 2 to 8
o RW2ZETH RS RTEOREL o 4 IR R ON S84

e Increase engineering and research and development staff by 5 to
41

o MMEsA AR - WIS BRI E - AR B A HUY 2414

e Increase sales and marketing staff by 3 to 20

o B3 EHAE Sorli M RO B > 4 %A 1 K B A HOE 2204

e Total number of full-time staff expected to be 69

o THHAEKE TR

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from the public listing was applied in the
following areas:

Visits have been paid to China, Eastern and Western
Europe, Japan, Middle East and the South East Asia
O 58 MR 57 P B~ SRR - PERR - HOAR -~ AR R
[t

One additional staff has been employed. Total
number of full-time staff is 7

CHOMEIEIZIRE - 28 TR/ TH

Four more staff has been employed. Total number
of full-time engineering and research and
development staff is 21

FOME AR A o R LR - OFJT BRI MY
HITHRER 214

Total number of full-time sales and marketing staff
is decreased by 1 to 19

W14 8 T R P R E > R A T4
A 194

Total number of full time staff is 47

BB LM B474
P #5323k E H &
SN BEETH R RIE AR TR

For the six months ended
30 June 2003

WE R
ANHA=Z+THIEAMA

Proposed Actual
sk B
HK$ million HK$ million
R R
Sales and marketing B KT 8 A 18 4.4
Product development FE (i B 5 2.3
23 6.7

After reviewing the global economic situation, the Group takes
a more prudent approach in its business expansion plan in order to
minimise any business risks arising from the uncertainties in the
economic downturn. As a result, the rate of application of proceeds
had been slowed down.

As at 30 June 2003, the Group has fully utilized its net proceeds
from the listing.

TE AL PR 2 KETF I DUAR - A 4R M B L) B 4
19 f8 BT LS I At ) > DLW AT T R A2 Bk
75 0 T A R 2 AN WY TR R B A R 2 S L
B o dUt o BT AT K IE 2 ME T B g
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Dr. Chan Chok Ki, aged 48, is a founder, chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Group, responsible for the overall
corporate management and business development of the Group. He
also actively participates in the strategic research and development
of the Group. Dr. C.K. Chan is a research veteran in the digital
signal processing and image compression technology. He had taught
at the City University of Hong Kong (“City University”) since 1985
and was a professor of the Department of Electronic Engineering at
the City University before he officially became involved in the
management of the Group on a full-time basis in December 2000.
He is presently an Adjunct Professor of the Department of Computer

Engineering and Information Technology at the City University.

Dr. C.K. Chan is presently the Vice Chairman of the Industry
and Technology Committee of the Hong Kong General Chamber of
Commerce and the member of the HKTDC Electronics/Electrical
Appliances Industry Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council. Currently, he is also an independent non-
executive director of Shun Cheong Holdings Ltd. He has received
many awards which include the EDN Asia Innovator in 1996 and
IEEE Third Millennium Award in 2000 for his outstanding

achievement and contributions.

Dr. C.K. Chan obtained both his bachelor and master degrees of
science in electrical engineering from The University of California,
Los Angeles. He received his PhD degree in electronics from The

Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Dr. Ma Chi Kit, aged 35, is a founder and the Chief Marketing
Officer of the Group. He has extensive knowledge on digital signal

processing and telecommunications technologies. He is presently

responsible for formulation and implementation of marketing
strategies, product pricing and positioning, and strategic management

of channel distribution for the Group.

Dr. Ma obtained his bachelor’s degree with first class honours

and a PhD degree in electronic engineering from the City University.

Mr. Ho Ka Ho, aged 31, is a founder and the Engineering Director
of the Group. He is in charge of the engineering department of the
Group and is responsible for product design, quality control, research
and development of the Group. Mr. Ho has expertise in computer

architecture, software engineering and digital signal processing.

Mr. Ho obtained his bachelor of engineering degree in computer
engineering with first class honours and master of science degree in

electronic engineering from the City University.
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Non-executive Director

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat, aged 45, is a founder and a research and
development consultant of the Group, responsible for spearheading
the research and development team on a part-time basis with
particular focus on product design and development. Dr. C.F. Chan
is a research veteran in the digital signal processing and speech

compression technology.

Dr. C.F. Chan is presently an associate professor of the
Department of Computer Engineering and Information Technology
at the City University. He is also a director of Signal Communications
Holdings Limited and Signal Communications Limited, both wholly-

owned subsidiaries of the Company.

In 1998, he was named “EDN Asia Innovator” by the EDN Asia

Magazine for his contribution in speech compression technology.

He received all his bachelor, master and PhD degrees in electronic

engineering from The University of Essex, England.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Professor Siu Wan Chi, aged 53, is an independent non-executive
Director who was appointed in September 2000. He is presently the
Chair Professor and Director of Centre for Multimedia Signal
Processing of the Department of Electronic and Information
Engineering, The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He was the
Head of the same department and Dean of Engineering Faculty

between 1994 and 2002.

Prof. Siu has held numerous public offices in the academic field
including guest editor, associate editor and member of editorial board
of renowned journals in the U.S., the UK and the PRC and chairman

of academic/professional assessment panels.

Prof. Siu obtained his master of philosophy degree from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong, and the PhD degree from The
Imperial College of Science, Technology and Medicine, UK.

Dr. Liao York, age 57, is an independent non-executive Director
who was appointed in November 2000. He is the managing director
of a private investment and consultancy company Winbridge. He
also serves on the board of a number of public and private companies
in various fields: manufacturing, software, environmental and
investment. He was appointed by the Government to the Boards of
the Science and Technology Park and the Applied Science and
Technology Research Institute.
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On the public service side, Dr. Liao has been an active member
of the University Grants Committee since 1994. He is a member of
the Council of Advisors for Innovation and Technology, as well as

the Chief Executive’s Commission on Strategic Development.

Dr. Liao obtained his bachelor’s degree in physics from California
Institute of Technology. He received his master of arts and PhD

degrees in applied physics from Harvard University.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Wong Siu Fan, aged 31, is the financial controller, qualified
accountant and company secretary of the Group. She has over nine
years of experience in auditing, accounting and financial
management. Prior to joining the Group in September 2000, Ms.
Wong had worked for an international accounting firm and a public
listed company in Hong Kong. Ms. Wong holds a bachelor’s degree
in accounting from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, and is
an associate member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants and
a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified

Accountants.

Mr. Lee Chiu Shing, aged 35, is the regional manager of the
Group. He joined the Group in May 1998. He is responsible for
development of the Japanese market for the Group’s products. He
has over nine years of working experience in the electronics industry,
including stationing as an electronic engineer in Japan for two years.
Mr. Lee is responsible for setting up the operation, staff training,
business development and technical support for the Group’s joint
venture company in Japan. Recently, he also takes the position of
product quality assurance manager and is in charge of the quality

assurance activities of the Group.

Ms. Leung Pui Shan, Lydia, aged 32,

communications manager of the Group. She has over seven years of

is the marketing

experience in corporate communications, marketing, promotions and
event management. Prior to joining the Group in September 1998,
Ms. Leung had worked for listed companies in Hong Kong and
high-technology fields. Ms. Leung holds a master degree in marketing
from The University of Stirling, the UK.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited

financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2003.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company with its shares
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
principal activities of its subsidiaries and an associate are set out in

notes 13 and 14, to the financial statements, respectively.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2003 are set

out in the consolidated income statement on page 27.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 11 to the financial

Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note

22 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS
Details of the share option schemes of the Company are set out

in note 23 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 30 June 2003:

(i) The Group’s five largest customers accounted for less than

30% of the Group’s total turnover.

(ii)  The Group’s largest supplier and five largest suppliers
accounted for 15% and 45%, respectively, of the Group’s
total purchases (not including purchases of items which

are of capital nature).

According to the understanding of the directors, none of the
directors, their associates (within the meaning of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”)) or any shareholders who owned more than
5% of the Company’s share capital had any interest in the Group’s

five largest suppliers.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the

date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Dr. Chan Chok Ki
Dr. Ma Chi Kit

Mr. Ho Ka Ho

Non-executive director:

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat

Independent non-executive directors:
Professor Siu Wan Chi
Dr. Liao York

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Professor Siu Wan Chi retires from office by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offers

himself for re-election.

The term of office of each non-executive director is the period
up to his retirement or rotation in accordance with the Company’s

Articles of Association.

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of one year commencing 1
April 2001, which will continue thereafter unless and until

terminated by either party by giving six months’ prior written notice.

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat has entered into a two-year consultancy
agreement with the Company commencing 1 April 2001 under which
he has agreed to act as a research and development consultant to
the Group on a part-time basis. The service period of such agreement
has been extended and will continue unless and until terminated by

either party by giving three months’ prior notice.

Save as disclosed above, no director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment

of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

At 30 June 2003, the interests of the directors and their associates
in the share capital and underlying shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), or which are required, pursuant to Rule

5.40 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and

the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

N R B A

Interests in

Total

interests in

R TEREZAANA A RS SR Ak
il (738 75 Fe 3 &t ol 1) 5535200 1m0 47 8 2 &Rl it i
o MR A A b RIS 5 400 2 N g A
Al MR 2 BURE > AR ) 2 AR A 2 TR
N TR AR 2% ] BRCHAT AT A B 325 1 2 B A KR Bl
B A R

Approximate

underlying issued shares/ percentage of

shares underlying interests in

Interests in pursuant to shares issued shares

issued shares share options R CEATREAY W BT R AP

AT AR R A B A h Z Z B A R

Name of director HELA ety 2 Mg BBy T 2 R AR HE 25 44 78 LK/
(notes 1 and 3) (notes 2 and 3)
(Kt 7E1 % 3) (K #E2 & 3)

Dr. Chan Chok Ki PR AR 2 1 104,000,000 1,800,000 105,800,000 57.8

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat B A B8 1 104,000,000 - 104,000,000 57.8

Dr. Ma Chi Kit G S At - 1,440,000 1,440,000 -

Mr. Ho Ka Ho [IEE Fes - 1,364,000 1,364,000 -

Notes: Wit -

(@D These shares, representing 57.8% of the issued share capital of (1) AN EEZAENH=EZTH EEALNF D
the Company as at 30 June 2003, are held by Etin City Limited, BEAT AR 57.8%2 X 4y H1 Etin City Limited#¥F
which is owned by Etin Tech Limited and CityU Enterprises H ° Etin City LimitedfH Etin Tech Limited
Limited in the proportion of 70% and 30%, respectively. Etin IR A AT BR 2 W 43 Bl 4 70% 5% 30%2
Tech Limited is owned by Dr. Chan Chok Ki, Dr. Chan Cheung ¥ # o Etin Tech Limited /3 i BE 1/ 2t 1
Fat, Dr. Ma Chi Kit and Mr. Ho Ka Ho in the proportion of T+ BRAE R A S AR M KBRS AR
approximately 44.3%, 34.3%, 14.3% and 7.1%, respectively. As Oy A 4% #144.3% > 34.3% ~ 14.3% X 7.1%2 I
Dr. Chan Chok Ki and Dr. Chan Cheung Fat are entitled to BIFEA o H R BR A 5 1l e e A 3 1l A
exercise or control the exercise of 30% or more of the voting A B AR R b ATl AT 30%Ek L B2
power in general meetings of Etin Tech Limited, they are deemed Etin Tech Limited Z # 2 HE > B 55 AR AR
to be interested in the entire shares in the Company held by A7 T 47 HH Etin City Limited$F A A A 7] 2
Etin City Limited. Ay o

(2) The share options are granted to the directors pursuant to the 2) LT I IRRE ) AR R AR 2 W] R AN 2 I R
share option schemes adopted by the Company, details of which wHlT E > A RO S ] 2 N RO B
are set out in note 23 to the financial statements. R B 23 -

(3) Interests in shares and underlying shares stated above are long 3) bl T R KA BRL B b 2 A A X R G o

positions.

Save as disclosed above, and other than a nominee share in a
subsidiary held by a director in trust for the Group, at 30 June
2003, none of the directors of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any securities of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as defined in the SFO, or which are required,
pursuant to Rule 5.40 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes detailed in note 23 to the
financial statements, at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate and none of the directors,
their spouses or children under the age of eighteen, had any rights
to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had exercised any

such rights during the year.

DIRECTORS’
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF

company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Save as the interests disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’
Interests in Securities”, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
discloses no person as having any interest or short position in the

issued share capital of the Company as at 30 June 2003.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The directors believe that none of the directors nor the
management shareholders of the Company (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) had an interest in a business, which competes or may

compete with the business of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata

basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES
During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied throughout the year ended 30 June
2003 with the board practices and procedures as set out in Rules
5.28 to 5.39 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
The audit committee has two members comprising two
independent non-executive directors, namely Professor Siu Wan Chi

and Dr. Liao York.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review the
Company’s annual report and financial statements, quarterly reports
and half-yearly report and to provide advice and comment thereon
to the board of directors. The audit committee will also be
responsible for reviewing and supervising the financial reporting

process and internal control procedures of the Group.

The audit committee held four meetings during the year ended

30 June 2003.

SPONSOR'’S INTERESTS

Neither the sponsor of the Company, AMS Corporate Finance
Limited (“AMS?”), nor its associates obtained any material benefit as
a result of the listing of the Company on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange, other than by a sponsor agreement entered into between
AMS and the Company, pursuant to which AMS received, and will
receive, fees for acting as the Company’s retained sponsor for the

period from 8 May 2001 to 30 June 2003.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2003, AMS, its directors,
employees and associates did not have any interest in the securities
of the Company or any members of the Group, or any right to
subscribe for or to nominate persons to subscribe for the securities

of the Company or any members of the Group.

AUDITORS

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu have acted as auditors of the
Company for the past three financial years, except for the year
ended 30 June 2001, in which KPMG acted as auditors of the
Company. A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu as auditors.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Chan Chok Ki
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Hong Kong, 10 September 2003
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Certified Public Accountants
26/F, Wing On Centre

111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TELEEYE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 27 to 58
which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing
financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based
on our audit, on those financial statements and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of
Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants.
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant
to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments
made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in order
to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance
as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 30 June
2003 and of the loss and cash flows of the Group for the year then
ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

10 September 2003

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu
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2003 2002

ZERRES L TAR

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Wt it T T

Turnover wEH 26,447 17,005
Cost of sales S & AR (8,531) (4,952)
Gross profit E F 17,916 12,053
Other operating income HAth &8 & e A 5 435 688
Distribution costs 41 85 B AR (7,436) (6,779)
Administrative expenses 17 B E F (7,434 (6,741)
Research and development expenditure  fiff 5% & %% J& 3 ) (4,742) (3,872)
Loss from operations R 1R 6 (1,261) (4,651)
Finance costs B Hs # F 7 (11) 9)
Share of loss of an associate JRE i Bt 75 A 7 s 48 - (404)
Loss before taxation 5% A 11T s 15 (1,272) (5,064)
Taxation (charge) credit BLIE (32 ) #E 9 (30) 589

Loss before minority interest FI R 20 BB ARHE 4 AT

5 18 (1,302) (4,475)

Minority interest D e R E A 93 76
Loss attributable to shareholders J% B Ak s 15 (1,209) (4,399)

Basic loss per share (B YN Ei| 10 (0.67 cent 1l (2.44 cents il
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At 30 June 2003 A “EE =4ENAH =+ H

2003 2002
SRR=HE SFR A
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
e Tt Tt

Non-current assets I i By
Property, plant and equipment LyE S O] 11 888 1,061
Capitalised development costs R A B AL 12 3,035 3,298
Interest in an associate B N\ 2 B 2 14 - -
Investments in securities oG 15 4,588 4913
8,511 9,272

Current assets i B &
Inventories & 16 4,604 3,154
Trade and other receivables R g B 3R K L At JRE i 3K 17 2,333 1,839
Amount due from an associate JE AT B 75 A ) 2 K IH 18 414 393
Bank balances, deposits and cash SRAT&EBR - A LBl 4 19,348 22.851
26,699 28,237
Current liabilities U=

Trade and other payables JRE ASE R K B L Al JE A5 3k 19 2,501 3,130
Amount due to a minority shareholder & {7 7> H % 3 3k H 20 325 332
Amounts due to directors JE A5} 2 =5 3k H 21 347 371
Taxation Al TE 31 8
3,204 3,841
Net current assets Ui B & E A 23,495 24,396
Total assets less current liabilities HE G P A ) A 32,006 33,668
Minority interest A BB R 2 167 66
32,173 33,734

Capital and reserves A B A A
Share capital e A% 22 1,800 1,800
Reserves it 5 30,373 31,934
32,173 33,734

The financial statements on pages 27 to 58 were approved and H2TESSH Z B MR R EH Gt XX Z4FE L
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 10 September H A+ B AZAEZZRETIED > dF T 52 H R R E

2003 and are signed on its behalf by: GEE
DR. CHAN CHOK KI MR. HO KA HO
PR AR R 1 o] 5% 5€ 55 2
Director Director

i i
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At 30 June 2003 A “EE =4ENAH =+ H

2003 2002
L EC I - S
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 7t T T

Non-current asset IE I B &
Investment in a subsidiary A B A 2 AR A 13 10 10

Current assets i B & E
Other receivables Lty JE Wiz K 58 63
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE Wiz I 2 7 TE 21 17,559 12,670
Bank balances and deposits SRAT &5 B S AT K 7,838 12,199
25,455 24,932
Current liabilities it B A

Other payables At A 3K 791 285
Amounts due to subsidiaries T A) BfF B 2 ) Rk TE 21 — 22
Amounts due to directors JEASH 28 =5 2 E 21 347 371
1,138 678
Net current assets i B & E A 24,317 24,254
24,327 24,264

Capital and reserves A B A A
Share capital e A% 22 1,800 1,800
Reserves it #5 24 22,527 22,464
24,327 24,264

DR. CHAN CHOK KI MR. HO KA HO
B A B 1+ il % 22 56 A
Director Director

i i
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For the year ended 30 June 2003 #{ % ~FE = 4E N H =+ H L4

Investment Retained
Share Share Translation revaluation Special profits
capital premium reserve reserve reserve (deficit) Total
& PR B ¥ 1
A i MESLGEAE EAGGEME R RIGEAS (&5 4t) Bt

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$000 HK$’000
THT THT THT THT THT THT THT

THE GROUP A< 45 |
At 1 July 2001 SRR
+tH—H 1,800 21,605 (96) = 14,990 375 38,674

Exchange differences g N SE T
on translation of Z MR E O E R

overseas operations . [ b 7% B = — 37 — — — 37
Revaluation of BB AERE
investments in
securities - - - (578) - - (578)
Net losses not A R 7 i #5 R A
recognised in the w8 2
income statement e - - 37 (578) - - (541)
Loss attributable J SR IRE A e 4R
to shareholders - - - - - (4,399) (4,399)
At 30 June 2002 W EE AR
ANHA=1H 1,800 21,605 (59) (578) 14,990 (4,024) 33,734
Exchange differences g AN SE T
on translation of 2R E O E R
overseas operations . [ b 7% B - = (29) = = - (29)
Revaluation of BB AERE
investments in
securities - - - (323) - - (323)
Net losses not 3 R 7 Ui £ R N
recognised in the w8 2
income statement AR - - (29) (323) = = (352)
Loss attributable J SR IRE A e 4R
to shareholders - - - - - (1,209) (1,209)
At 30 June 2003 W EE AR
NH=1H 1,800 21,605 (88) (901) 14,990 (5,233) 32,173
Attributed to an ENER -/
associate: Zﬁéfﬁ :
At 30 June 2003 R EER =
and 2002 N BT A
NH=1H = = (99) = = (961) (1,060)

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between A AR ] 2 R R A T HE AR R R — 4R H
the aggregate of the nominal value of share capital of the subsidiaries AT 45 1B B A IRE o T A 2 B A R A R 2 AR THT (B
acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation in April 2001 and the BRLAS S ] BEAT I A A 2 i I A A 2 TR (B T o 2 22
nominal value of the share capital issued by the Company as B o

consideration for the acquisition.
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For the year ended 30 June 2003 #{ & —~F & =4 N H =+ H (L4

2003 2002
BB Se2 sy
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#c TH T

OPERATING ACTIVITIES R EH
Loss from operations =g ZRiE| (1,261) (4,651)
Adjustments for: BT SN IE H AR SRR

Interest income FlE e A (281) (575)

Dividend income from investments in securities R g 2 BB A (119) (113)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment I~ B IR 2 B 8 613 553

Amortisation of capitalised development costs BT AR G AL 2 1,456 828

Development cost capitalised PR G AL (1,193) (1,399)

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts SR 8 48 Al 57 16

Allowance for loan to an associate TSN R R R 131 -

Allowance for inventories 178 Al 125 107

Exchange differences on translation [ 58, 2 (40) 32
Operating cash flows before movements REEEEHHZ

in working capital WER SR E (512) (5,202)
Increase in inventories ez 8 (1,575) (756)
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables B i B R K Al E ek (48 ) e (551) 46
Increase in amount due from an associate JRE WA B 2 ) 2 TE B (152) (79)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables JEASF B R K Gl E A 3k (2P B4 (629) 1,729
Decrease in amounts due to directors JHE A5} B =5 2 K D (24) (775)
Cash used in operations JHE FH iR 48 % RS 2 Bl 4 (3,443) (5,037)
Interest received B i S 283 577
Overseas tax paid 2 A i S0 B IH (8) =
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid 2 A s A 15 B - 4
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES JE FH R 2888 SR 2 2 Bl 42 A (3,168) (4,464)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment A~ BE Tk A (436) (504)
Dividend income received B kB S Ui A 119 113
Purchase of investments in securities A RS R & - (5,492)
Advance to an associate JHE A5} Mg % /N 7] 2 K - (314)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES JE FH R #2352 Bl 42 A (317 (6,197)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES il R
Repayment of bank borrowing & 72 4R AT 1 3K (208) -
(Repayment to) advance from a minority shareholder (18 %) JE Uit 8 B R 2 3K (16) 332
Interest paid EEORIPES ) 9)
New bank borrowing raised 2 SR AT A K 208 -
Capital contribution by a minority shareholder DB 2 B A E R - 2
Dividend paid 2T E - (1,200)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES JRE FR A Tl 5 2 5 2 B 4 i (18) (875)
DECREASE IN CASH AND B4 Je B4 5 [ 4 WA

CASH EQUIVALENTS (3,503) (11,536)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS T4 0 1 B e B4 S

AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 22,851 34387
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TR B T Bl S

AT END OF THE YEAR,

representing bank balances, deposits and cash (BDSRAT 45 8% - AKX Bl4&) 19,348 22,851
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For the year ended 30 June 2003 #{ % ~FE = 4E N H =+ H L4

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability and its shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate holding
company is Etin Tech Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries and an associate are set out in

notes 13 and 14, respectively.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STATEMENTS OF
STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE

In the current year, the Group has adopted, for the first time, a
number of new and revised Statements of Standard Accounting
Practice (“SSAP(s)”) issued by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants, which has resulted in the adoption of the following
new and revised accounting policies. The adoption of these
SSAPs has resulted in a change in the format of presentation of
the cash flow statement and an inclusion of a statement of
changes in equity, but has had no material effect on the results
for the current or prior accounting periods. Accordingly, no

prior period adjustment has been required.

Foreign currencies

The revisions to SSAP 11 “Foreign currency translation” have
eliminated the choice of translating the income statements of
overseas operations at the closing rate for the year, the policy
previously followed by the Group. They are now required to
be translated at an average rate. This change in accounting
policy has not had any material effect on the results for the

current or prior accounting periods.

Cash flow statements

Under SSAP 15 (Revised) “Cash flow statements”, cash flows
are classified under three headings - operating, investing and
financing, rather than the previous five headings. Interest
received and paid, which were previously presented under a
separate heading, are classified as operating and financing cash
flows, respectively. Dividend received and paid, which were
also previously presented under a separate heading, are
classified as investing and financing cash flow, respectively.
Cash flows arising from taxes on income are classified as
operating activities, unless they can be separately identified
with investing or financing activities. Cash flows of overseas
operations have been re-translated at the rates prevailing at the
dates of the cash flows rather than the rate of exchange ruling
on the balance sheet date. The change in exchange rates used
for translation of the cash flows of overseas operations has not
had any material effect on the comparative amounts shown in

the cash flow statement.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STATEMENTS OF 2. MMM ERKET 2 i EHEA — 4

STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE - continued
Employee benefits

SSAP 34 “Employee benefits” introduces measurement rules
for employee benefits, including retirement benefit plans.
Because the Group participates only in defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme, the adoption of SSAP 34 has not

had any material impact on the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention as modified for revaluation of investments in

securities.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The

principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 30

June each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of

disposal, as appropriate.

Turnover
Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable for
goods sold, less returns and allowances, to outside customers

during the year.

Revenue recognition
Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and

title has passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the

principal outstanding and at the interest rate applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

shareholders’ right to receive payment have been established.

& B & F1

&t p RS 3498 [ R B A8 AL 51 A IR B 48
Az B REYER > G5B RAE A8 oy R A
5 MR 2 g A FOR IRAE R FH S - PRAN

FE B Y JU) 25 345 3B B 5 k3% Sl A ] K
TR -

T BOR
Vb 755 S 32 7 $2 JRR S RS U5 T A R IO R
P& 2 AL AR AERT o

Vo 75 i 3 0 AR A T — PR 2 U
A o DAR B AR SR B BR A 2 g R EUR

B AR AR H 2 R
R BB R AL AR AR o R S B A R AR
BENA=Z+HZMBHRE -

A ASAE BEIA (5 p Wi A 2 F s 2 o s 2R
2% FSUIRE R (28 1) ) e i = e 45 A e ) 2
KHOF AW EEEN -

s

SRR EFENC EE &2 & EK
W] K BH W AR T MR B T 2 R K M i Rl 2 K
/E\o

W 25 i 58

945 B TE S B dh B B 2 i A B R I ke
YN

M‘WAuﬁﬁ%E 2 14 BR A 4B L% %8 1 A
ESHRCR (TN

P 2 B IS MO TE J5 SR AR A O I i
YN



5

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FeVR W' R'Y m s
E\ZI' ;]’% *ﬁ ,‘HE Bﬁ' 'ELI Annual Report 2003 & 3§

For the year ended 30 June 2003 #{ % ~FE = 4E N H =+ H L4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant
and equipment, over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account their estimated residual value, if any, using the

straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

33'3%
20%
20% — 33'5%

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures

Office equipment

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the

income statement.

Research and development costs
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense

in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated
that the development costs incurred on a clearly-defined project
will be recovered through future commercial activity. The
resultant asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over its

useful life.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an

expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An

impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Impairment — continued

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, such that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s

balance sheet at cost, less any identified impairment losses.

Interests in associates

The consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition results of its associates for the year. In
the consolidated balance sheet, interests in associates are stated
at the Group’s share of the net assets of the associates less any

identified impairment losses.

Investments in securities
Investments in securities are recognised on a trade-date basis

and are initially measured at cost.

At subsequent reporting date, debt securities that the Group
has the expressed intention and ability to hold to maturity
(held-to-maturity debt securities) are measured at amortised
cost, less any impairment loss recognised to reflect irrecoverable
amounts. The annual amortisation of any discount or premium
on the acquisition of a held-to-maturity security is aggregated
with other investment income receivable over the term of the
instrument so that the revenue recognised in each period

represents a constant yield on the investment.

All securities other than held-to-maturity debt securities are

measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value.

Where securities are held for trading purposes, unrealised gains
and losses are included in net profit or loss for the period. For
other securities, unrealised gains and losses are dealt with in
equity, until the security is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is included in the net profit or loss for the

year.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year as
adjusted for items which are non-assessable or disallowed.
Timing differences arise from the recognition for tax purposes
of certain items of income and expense in a different accounting
period from that in which they are recognised in the financial
statements. The tax effect of the timing differences, computed
using the liability method, is recognised as deferred taxation
in the financial statements to the extent that it is probable that

a liability or an asset will crystallise in the foreseeable future.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are
initially recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are
re-translated into Hong Kong dollars at the rates prevailing on
the balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising on exchange

are dealt with in the income statement.

In preparing consolidated financial statements, the assets and
liabilities of the Group’s overseas operations are translated at
exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income
and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified
as equity and transferred to the Group’s translation reserve.
Such translation differences are recognised as income or as

expenses in the period in which the operation is disposed of.

Operating leases
Rentals paid and payable under operating leases are charged to
the income statement on a straight-line basis over such term of

the relevant lease.

Retirement benefits costs
Payments to the Group’s defined contribution retirement

schemes are charged as expenses as they fall due.

3.

F T BOR -8

8]

A7 B 2 AR BT 5 BT (R W AR AR
G BR o BEA I 4% ST AE ST A A A S(EHE -

Bt I

Tl JH S HH 79 MR 9 4B A AR I 2 SE AT i 0 R
PRBLBCAS AT 1B 2 T E AR R R T o W
Z2 2 R TE FT A BB A RS A TIHE Z A
Jo 32 2 0 TH] B % 45 TR H RC A A 5 R 2
] A B AS ) 1T 8 2R o PRI IR 22 28 A 2 L5 3 8%
DA A D 27 B 5 ik 3R o e R A B SE B K
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SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. SECEFR
In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, AR PR AR 4 1] 2 oA 3 A 5 2 oy =X AR AR [
the Group has determined that geographical segment by location FE LA 2 JT AE 1l [ 43 A 70 B ARy
of customers is its primary reporting format. = o
Geographical segments Hi [R5 43 ¥
The Group reports its primary segment information by AEEMUHEF (HEF B0 AFE - HAb
geographical location of its customers who are principally oY B SR R 2 i A b T 2 R L o SR
located in Hong Kong, other Asian countries and Europe. 2 = N Nl 1101 0 | ol B eyt
Segment information about these geographical markets is B
presented below:
2003
ZERER=4F
Other Asian
Hong Kong countries Europe Others Eliminations ~ Consolidated
Aty
i 1 B K B o fts B A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T T
TURNOVER BEW
External sales SR
Z 8,592 6,147 8,610 3,098 - 26,447
Inter-segment sales IR 2 8 - 1,167 - - (1,167) -
Total turnover B 8,592 7314 8,610 3,098 (1,167) 26,447
SEGMENT RESULT R ES 4,310 904 2,458 1,635 - 9,307
Unallocated ES i)
corporate income A 435
Unallocated ES P
corporate expenses Ak gl
— Administrative and — B R H A
other expenses % (6,261)
— Research and — B B
development i
expenditure (4,742)
Loss from operations ESE-{ oF i (1,261)
Finance costs 0 % H (11)
Loss before taxation Wt i s 1L (1,272)
Taxation charge B S (30)
Loss before minority B BUR R
interest HE 4 i i 4 (1,302)
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Geographical segments — continued

Inter-segment sales are charged at cost plus a percentage mark-

up.

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment

4. SRR —
H [ 53 ¥ — A

G HIS ] 2 G B R 4 RS N e — 0y B M R
(=

PLTR 7 14 %0 5 i A 3t [ ) 22 0 B8 B K o

assets and segment liabilities, analysed by the geographical WA AR A H 2 T
location of its customers:
2003
S B
Other Asian
Hong Kong countries Europe Others Consolidated
o fts
i 1 B g o fts B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T
ASSETS R
Segment assets oY R 537 2,169 997 22 3,725
Unallocated corporate assets A &4 1/ 7] & 7 31,485
Consolidated total assets LGAmEE 35,210
LIABILITIES Atk
Segment liabilities i 710 330 215 161 1,416
Unallocated corporate & #7102 7 AR
liabilities 1,788
Consolidated total liabilities %¢& 4 & & 3,204
Other Asian
Hong Kong countries Europe Others Corporate  Consolidated
o fts
i 1 B K B o fts A A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T T
OTHER INFORMATION ~ JL Al % B
Capital additions BEARE — 219 24 — 193 436
Development costs BRBAEAL
capitalised — — — — 1,193 1,193
Depreciation ik — 45 26 — 542 613
Amortisation of capitalised B A B AL
development costs e 3 — — — — 1,456 1,456
Other non-cash expenses HAb B % 54 134 - - 125 313
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SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 4. SEER—H
Geographical segments — continued Hi [R5 43 ¥ — A
2002
—EBE
Other Asian
Hong Kong countries Europe Others Eliminations ~ Consolidated
HAts
iR i B % B Jts Ha e
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T T
TURNOVER e
External sales REMEZ
HE 5,783 5,110 3,664 2,448 - 17,005
Inter-segment sales o 2 8 = 431 — — (431) —
Total turnover BEEH 5,783 5,541 3,664 2,448 (431) 17,005
SEGMENT RESULT Vi 1,864 1,136 402 1,092 - 4,494
Unallocated corporate A H AT
income e A 688
Unallocated RE A A
corporate expenses % il
- Administrative and — T B R A
other expenses # (5,961)
- Research and — R B R
development i
expenditure (3,872)
Loss from operations Fg e (4,651)
Finance costs g g g )
Share of loss of an associate & Ifi 4 /> 7]
Jis 45 - (404) - - - (404)
Loss before taxation I B i A 48 (5,064)
Taxation credit B K % 589
Loss before 0 > #E R
minority interest HE 4 i i 4R (4,475)
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Geographical segments — continued

Inter-segment sales are charged at cost plus a percentage mark-

up.

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment

4. SRR —
H [ 53 ¥ — A

43 i ] 2 G B Rk 4% BRAS o e — oy b v 6
% o

PLTR 7 14 %0 5 i A 3t [ ) 22 0 B8 B K o

assets and segment liabilities, analysed by the geographical WA AR A H 2 T
location of its customers:
2002
ZERERTHE
Other Asian
Hong Kong countries Europe Others Consolidated
Aty
i 1 B K gl o fts A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T
ASSETS R
Segment assets oY 495 686 607 30 1,818
Unallocated corporate assets A &4 {1/ 7] & 7 35,691
Consolidated total assets LA RE 37,509
LIABILITIES Atk
Segment liabilities = 933 152 430 342 1,857
Unallocated corporate & #7105 7 AR
liabilities 1,084
Consolidated total liabilities %¢ & % & & 3,841
Other Asian
Hong Kong countries Europe Others Corporate  Consolidated
Hio
il [P B Aty A e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T T
OTHER INFORMATION LAl %K
Capital additions BEARRE - 55 70 - 379 504
Development costs BREAEAL
capitalised - - - - 1,399 1,399
Depreciation it = 11 9 = 533 553
Amortisation of capitalised & A B AL
development costs ZE = = = - 828 828
Other non-cash expenses HAb IR B % 11 - 5 - 107 123
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SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Geographical segments — continued

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment
assets, and additions to property, plant and equipment and

capitalised development costs analysed by the geographical area

in which the assets are located.

Carrying amounts

4. Sl EORE—
Hb I 43— A
DLTR 7% 4 5 8 T 7 3l [ o) 7 22 43 3 B )
2 RS R TR BB AL R Z
MR T {EL 2 73 A o

Additions to
property, plant
and equipment
and capitalised

development costs

of segment assets ERN &L
o3 B 2 i HEALEREAZRE
2003 2002 2003 2002
ZERFEA ZEEFF ZERFEA ZEEFF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T o T ¥ 7o T80 T ¥ oo
Hong Kong i 33,053 36,672 1,386 1,778
Other Asian countries F:Ath 58 P 5] X 1,937 568 219 55
Europe R 220 269 24 70
35,210 37,509 1,629 1,903
Business segments E P

The Group is solely engaged in research and development and
sales and marketing of audio and video monitoring systems.
Accordingly, all of the Group’s turnover, contribution to loss
from operations and assets were attributable to this business

segment.

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

AL A H R LR R AL 2 W5 S BH B
S KT o JRIE o AL A B2
WMo RBEBEHERAREECHALRELD
.

5. MR KA

2003 2002
“eg=s S
HK$’000 HK$°000
T TH# T
Other operating income is analysed as follows: HADKEE WA Z T
Interest income from AR IEE 2 LBk A
— bank deposits — AT K 211 524
— investments in securities, net of amortisation — R E  Hl E
of premium on acquisition of approximately i 1 2 #8549 2,000% 7T
HK$2,000 (2002: HK$1,000) (Z2% Z 4 21,0009 7T) 67 49
— amount due from an associate — JRE Wi A N W] 2 BRI 3 2
Dividends from investments in securities R E S 119 113
Others H A 35 -

435

688
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6. LOSS FROM OPERATIONS 6. REEH
2003 2002
N L EL I T
HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt Tl
Loss from operations has been arrived FE i
at after charging: SAnER -
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments B T A (E4EE FH4) 12,093 10,548
Retirement benefits scheme contributions AR PR AR ) T L 517 376
Total staff costs B L AAS 4840 12,610 10,924
Less: Amount capitalised as development costs W B AL B AR 8 R A
Z A (1,193) (1,399)
11,417 9,525
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts R S R A 57 16
Allowance for inventories 17 & HE A 125 107
Allowance for loan to an associate AT W A R B R A 131 -
Amortisation of capitalised development costs R A B AL 2 ik 6
included in research and development (2 3 AW 5% K 8% Je 32 )
expenditure 1,456 828
Auditors’ remuneration A2 AT P <5 246 240
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment LYE N O & i A 613 553
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. WMEEM
2003 2002
N L EC I T S
HK$°000 HK$°000
T# oo T o0
Interest on FILE
— bank borrowing wholly repayable within — ZHN AR N A B R
five years SRAT i K 2 -
— advance from a minority shareholder wholly — A& B — 2 BUR R ZH iR
repayable within five years AR TR A R 2 BGR 9 9
11 9
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS R B
2003 2002
I EC I - S
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Directors’ fees: A
Executive HATHE H - =
Non-executive AT = - =
Independent non-executive ML ATE SR 160 160
160 160
Other emoluments for executive and AT K IE AT HE B
non-executive directors: L Ath 1 4
Salaries and other benefits 3 4 e L Ath 45 A 3,527 3,551
Retirement benefits scheme contributions AR AR I F B A K 36 36
3,563 3,587
3,723 3,747

Emoluments of the directors were within the following bands:

P <= 75 DA 8 [ 0 R 5 SN R

No. of directors

PN
2003 2002
TEREES R AR
HK$1,000,000 or below 1,000,000%5 6 5% PA 5 5
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 % 7€ £ 2,500,000% 7€ 1 1

The four (2002: four) executive and non-executive directors
received emoluments of approximately HK$2,016,000,
HK$732,000, HK$628,000 and HK$187,000 for the year ended
30 June 2003 (2002: approximately HK$2,016,000,
HK$756,000, HK$628,000 and HK$187,000). Other than a fee
of approximately HK$80,000 (2002: HK$80,000) for the year
ended 30 June 2003, each of the two independent non-executive
directors is not entitled to any other emoluments from the

Group.

AN T, (ZFF A A7) AT IR
TERAHE FZ =A==+ HIEFE
A U B 2z B 4 4 Al £ 45 2,016,000% TG
732,000% JC ~ 628,000%5 JG &% 187,000%5 JC
(ZFF A 0 %92,016,0004 76 ~ 756,000%5
JG > 628,000%5 7 X 187,000 70) © BRI ZE —
I =M NH =1 H IEFE 2 # 4 480,000
ot (EE 4 1 80,0009 ) A o T 4
SE AT HE S A B A B A HOAS 4R 1 2 AT AT
b P < -
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 8.
— continued
The five highest paid individuals included three (2002: three)
directors of the Company, details of whose emoluments are set

out above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2002: two)
individuals, which fall within the band of nil to HK$1,000,000

for each of the two years ended 30 June 2003, are as follows:

O R H O e — A

RSN Ed > GFARARZ =
fr (B E 4 =) BH > B4 L XA
H RS FEE o HERmi, CEE 4 0 |
) NEiviiE —FE =4 H =1+ H 1k m
A4 H BB 4 & 21,000,000 T 0 #F
EWF -

2003 2002

N L EL I T

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T

Salaries and other benefits 3 4 e L Ath 4 A 1,021 780
Bonus {E 4L - 68
Retirement benefits scheme contributions FERr NS o ] R 82 24
1,103 872

During each of the years ended 30 June 2003 and 2002, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, including directors, as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

In addition, no director waived any emoluments during the
years ended 30 June 2003 and 2002.

BE ZZF N FEFNNH=1THIE
AW A BE A > A S [H] 87 48 1 A 4R e v 1Y
N (B ) A AT Ao S TE AE £ TR 51 1 45
N T A A 4 [ 2 A Jgh B AR i A A 4 [ 2 IR
Wi B A Rl oI B T A 1 o UL Ah > R ST
4E N B TAESN A = H kAR A AT
AT A5 B HE =B 0 HE AT o] T 4% o

9. TAXATION (CHARGE) CREDIT 9. MBI ) #HA

2003 2002
SRR=HE SFR A
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T

The (charge) credit comprises: BLIE (G2 H) K R -
Taxation outside Hong Kong — current year FH LIS 2 BiTH — A4 (30) (8)
Deferred taxation credit (note 25) W JE Bl TEAK O (M 25) — 597
(30) 589

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
financial statements as the Group incurred tax losses for both

years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 25.

F A A e (5] AR AT 4 A 3 R B
8> B AR BB SR B A v SR

T At ] 325 [ 2 10 B TEUR 2 A B D 9
[ BLAT B B R wHA -

A B A SE A JE B R O B E25 e
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10. BASIC LOSS PER SHARE
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on a loss of
approximately HK$1,209,000 (2002: loss of HK$4,399,000),
being loss attributable to shareholders and 180,000,000 (2002:
180,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

11.

For the year ended 30 June 2003 #{ & —~F & =4 N H =+ H (L4

No disclosure of diluted loss per share for the years ended 30

June 2003 and 2002 is shown as the effect of the potential

ordinary shares outstanding would result in a decrease in loss

per share for both years.

10. %

JBE 3 A Jis 18

B R AL A s 18 TS AR PR S 1E (RD A% SRR A s 18)
#)1,209,000% 76 ( =& E — 4 : 5 HE
4,399,000% Jo) K AN C ¥ 17 F E K
180,000,000/% (& & 4 : 180,000,000/%)
A -

ME FEZARFEEAASTAL
4 FE S 90 P A2 R o AT
VR 8 2 B 0 2 4
BE 2 5 B AL o

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11. W% - M5 Kk f
Furniture
Leasehold and Office
improvements fixtures equipment Total
INEE S AR K% /A
#1& *H % A Fiaki]
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T T T T T T
THE GROUP 2 45 [H]
COST AR
At 1 July 2002 W FET AR
B E = 254 470 1,629 2,353
Exchange adjustments [ b, 7 2% - - 7 7
Additions B 73 43 320 436
At 30 June 2003 N FET AR
NHA=1H 327 513 1,956 2,796
DEPRECIATION Preg
At 1 July 2002 e 2 S :E
+tH— 130 242 920 1,292
Exchange adjustments [ b, 7 % - - 3 3
Provided for the year A AF BE 3 A 97 84 432 613
At 30 June 2003 N FET AR
NH=1H 227 326 1,355 1,908
NET BOOK VALUES W T 1
At 30 June 2003 N FET AR
NH=1H 100 187 601 888
At 30 June 2002 N FET AR
NHA=1H 124 228 709 1,061
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12. CAPITALISED DEVELOPMENT COSTS 12. )R A E A4k
HK$’000
T
THE GROUP A< 4
COST 5N
At 1 July 2002 W B EEH—H 4336
Additions N E 1,193
At 30 June 2003 N FEFE=FANH=TH 5,529
AMORTISATION i £
At 1 July 2002 W oEEELH—H 1,038
Provided for the year A AF BE 5 A 1,456
At 30 June 2003 W _EFEE=FNH=1TH 2,494
NET BOOK VALUE EEE?%{E
At 30 June 2003 W EE=AFEARNH =1H 3,035
At 30 June 2002 HWEEFEZFANH=1TH 3,298

Development costs recognised as an asset are amortised using

the straight-line method over three years from the

commencement of the commercial phase of the products £ o
developed.
13. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY 13. AW B A F ZH/E

L 8 2y S A B R AR TE %R R i B T
KFE BB IR 1R - DL E AR RS - I A =

THE COMPANY

PN/
2003 2002
SRR=HE SFR A
HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt Tt
Unlisted investment, at cost JE L RE > AR 10 10
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13. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — continued 13. AME AR Z#E —

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 30 June 2003 were

as follows:

R EREZAENH ZHH o AL A F

ZEEIE IR

Proportion of

Place of Issued and fully nominal value of
incorporation/ paid up ordinary issued capital/
registration share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation  registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
HAR A A
[5%: S a3 R Z D8
kRS R 0 e e A/ A A Z
P Ja§ 2+ ) 44 RS RAGEME A T fi5 4 bE FEEH
Directly Indirectly
% fH] £
% %
Signal Communications BVI HK$15,000,000 100 — Investment holding
Holdings Limited B R LR 15,000,000 7C Ea il
SiCOM China Limited BVI US$1 — 100 Investment holding
Y Jo IR B 17T BE
SiCOM Europe Limited BVI US$1 = 100 Investment holding
Y Jo IR B 1370 R
SiCOM Far East Limited BVI US$1 = 100 Investment holding
Y Jo IR B 1370 R
SiCOM Japan Limited BVI US$1 = 100 Investment holding
P IR B 1370 R
Signal Communications Hong Kong HK$1,000 — 100 Research and development
Limited EiS 1,000 ¥ 7C and sales and
HF R4 A R ) marketing of audio
and video monitoring
systems
BRI ERG 205 &
B T 1 BT 4
TeleEye Europe Limited The United Kingdom GB£1 - 100 Marketing of audio and video
£ 135 8% monitoring systems
000 B AR T 3 4
TeleEye (S) Pte Limited Republic of S$1,000 - 51 Sales and marketing of
Singapore 1,00054F i3 7t audio and video
o 3% monitoring systems
RBEERS
# JT 8 4 i
T B R B R B (I The People’s US$130,000 - 100 Production, sales and
H BR 7 7 (Note) (Bf7E) Republic of China 130,000 3% JG marketing of audio and
(the “PRC”) video monitoring systems
w3 N RIE A BRIEE ARG 2 WER
(M) BT 4 i

Note: The company is registered in the form of a wholly owned foreign B et - w% s PL A E A AN E AR S 2 7 G -

enterprise.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt capital outstanding at

i AR 4 JBE R At TR BRAR 4 BE 22 AT ] IR ] oA A
Wi g 2~ ) B A AT ) i R AE R 2 fE R A -

the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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14. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 14. I o 7] Z b 2
THE GROUP
A< 45 1
2003 2002
mRR=HE SFR A
HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt Tl
Share of net assets of an associate JRE A 2 A ] 2 B R VR E - =
Details of the Group’s associate as at 30 June 2003 were as W oERE=ZFENA=1H > AEEZEEL
follows: A REIEAR
Proportion of
Place of nominal value of
incorporation issued capital
Name of associate and operation held by the Group Principal activity
Hi A 45 [
Ak {1 B S FAEZ OB
T 22 2 ] 44 Hg e 5848 b B JBe A< T fE Ay b Bt/
CAMERIO Japan, Incorporated Japan 49% Sales and marketing of
H 7 audio and video
monitoring systems
BEEEEARMZ
i B B i 35
15. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 15. #EHHRE
THE GROUP
N L
Held-to-maturity
debt securities Other securities Total
SRR IEEIR IR Rr T £ H Al T 75 K
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
CRREE “REAE CREREE “REAE CRREE “REAE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T Tkt T Tkt T Tkt
Listed equity securities Fiz bl
in Hong Kong B A 7 5 - = 3,030 3,353 3,030 3,353
Listed debt securities R Z bl
in the United States 8 & %
of America 1,558 1,560 - - 1,558 1,560
1,558 1,560 3,030 3,353 4,588 4,913
Market value Ll %

of listed securities 2T 1,564 1,567 3,030 3,353 4,594 4,920
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16. INVENTORIES 16. &
THE GROUP
A4 H
2003 2002
CREEZS C 2 S S
HK$’000 HK$’000
SR Tt
Raw materials JEURE 2,271 1,614
Finished goods R 2,333 1,540
4,604 3,154
Included in the above are raw materials of approximately DL E#127,0008 00 (2% 4 M) 25k
HK$27,000 (2002: Nil) and finished goods of approximately & #1110,000% 76 (~FEFE 4 1 124,000%
HK$110,000 (2002: HK$124,000) which were carried at net J6) 2 B R DA ) A B VR (E SR o
realisable value.
17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. JRE WHR 33k S G At JE WLk
The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to its AEMEFPFHETHEGEF=THZEH
trade customers. oo
Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables of R Wiz Bk e L At BB Wi R 6 35 FE U’ 5 BR R A
approximately HK$1,642,000 (2002: HK$905,000). The 1,642,000% 70 (= FE 4 : 905 ooov%m o
following is an aged analysis of trade receivables at the balance A A A H B B IR B AT K H O 2 SRS
sheet date prepared on the basis of due payment date of sales HZIRE W
invoice:
THE GROUP
A4 H
2003 2002
I EC I - S
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T
Current B[V HA A5 3¢ 1,532 610
1 to 3 months overdue w1 =318 H 56 189
More than 3 months but less than A1 A 3 E H =
12 months overdue TE1218 H BA A 54 106
1,642 905
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18. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 18. JE W 2 A Rl Z K IH
THE GROUP
N L
2003 2002
CEREELS TR A
HK$°000 HK$°000
T# oo T o0
Loan account AR T 183 314
Trade account H 7 Wk IH 231 79
414 393
The amount is unsecured and repayable on demand. The loan 5% 25 ST 2y S UK P R JE 4 B OR T A R o B
account bears interest at 1% per annum and the trade account HRIH 2 47 B B 1% - T & 2 B TE HIUR B AL o
is non-interest bearing.
19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19. JE £ Bk S I fth B A+ sk
Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of R AT R S o G At R AT 3K 61 455 JE A5 BE B BR R Y
approximately HK$408,000 (2002: HK$783,000). The following 408,000 7T (— &% 4 : 783,000#7T) °
is an aged analysis of trade payables at the balance sheet date A A H At R T A S 2 B AT K H O 2 Sk
prepared on the basis of due payment date of supplier invoice: HEFHIA Z BRES /- AT AN T -
THE GROUP
A< 45 1
2003 2002
SRR=HE SFR A
HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt Tl
Current BV HA A5F 3¢ 326 606
1 to 3 months overdue a1 B 1% 3 H 37 2
More than 3 months but less than 781 101 4 34 H {H
12 months overdue TE12 1 H P " 45 175
408 783
20. AMOUNT DUE TO A MINORITY SHAREHOLDER 20. ME £+ A BB HOKH
THE GROUP A< 45
The balance is unsecured, non-interest bearing (2002: borne P2 A A AR AT - RKEAE (SR T A
interest at prevailing market rates) and is repayable on demand. e BLAT T 35 At ) K J8 i B ORI AH 2 o
21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES AND 21. HEWHE A FiF )R A V) R HE R IR

DIRECTORS
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY
The balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are

repayable on demand.

A< 45 ) B A A )
R SR BN RS R ZH e BER T
B -



TeleEye Hold
F B

ings Limited
R &2 KR A B 2 7

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o1

Annual Report 2003 % 3§ E\ZI’ ;]'% ﬁ ,‘HE M(J‘ 'ELI
For the year ended 30 June 2003 #{ & —~F & =4 N H =+ H (L4
22. SHARE CAPITAL 22. B AR
Number of shares HK$°000
e £y 80 T T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 15 JRE T 80,0195 e 2 % 78 it
Authorised: HEE A
At 1 July 2001, 30 June 2002 h_EE—FELH—H
and 30 June 2003 “EEZ_HEANH=EZTHR
—EE=FRA=1H 800,000,000 8,000
Issued and fully paid: BT B A
At 1 July 2001, 30 June 2002 h_EE—FELH—H
and 30 June 2003 “EEZ_HEANH=ZTHR
S VA = ot 180,000,000 1,800

23.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopts the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the
“Pre-IPO Scheme”) and the Share Option Scheme (the “Option
Scheme™) to grant share options to eligible employees, including

the executive directors of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The Pre-IPO Scheme was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 12 April 2001 to recognise the contribution of
executive directors and employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries to the growth of the Group and/or the listing of
the Company’s shares on the GEM. The options under the
scheme granted the right to the holder to subscribe for new
ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.60 per ordinary share
and the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
might be granted under the scheme was 14,400,000. The
number of shares in respect of which options might be granted

to any individual was not permitted to exceed 3,600,000.

Options might be granted without any initial payment. Options
granted are exercisable to the extent of an aggregate total of
25%, 50%, 75% and 100% at anytime after 6 months, 18 months,
30 months and 42 months, respectively, from the
commencement of the trading of the shares of the Company on
the GEM, and have a duration of 10 years from their respective

vesting dates.

Upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the GEM on 8
May 2001 no further options could be granted by the Company
under the Pre-IPO Scheme. The rights of the holders of the
share options granted prior thereto are not affected and such
options granted continue to remain valid and exercisable in

accordance with the terms of the scheme.

23.

Sl L i
AR ) BR A 8 BB S MR (T AR i
RETE 1) Lo W EHE B ([0 et &) - 35
AT B R B (B 46 AR 2 7 B FLR i 2 7] 2
AT H ) B R o

AN AR —FFE—AFENH FH@ERZ
— TE P ik 5 PR A TR AT e ME S o g DA
AN T B B N T 2 AT O R B AR
5 [ 22 R e mRAR A T R B ZE AR BT
STVEH Z B Rk T LA B o AR T H) AE 4
T HEA N RER A 4% 4 1 78 2060 W JG ER I
WS P 10 (-1 i - ] ik s
Wi R B 9 T 2 e s IR0y 8 H £ 14,400,000
B o Al AT N £ 2 B HE 2 Iy B E A
n] 48 3#% 3,600,000 % °

8 e R A S A S AT A ) 25 R T 22 1 R 73
SRV] T2t o i I HE A A 8 IR0 A A ZE AR
Pl E = A& > al o AlETR S H - /U
A~ =@ A R+ —Af A 2 4% 2 AT ] B R
N> EYR P AT A A S A I I HE 48 %8 2 25%
50% ~ 75% 5% 100% ° #% 55 B HE th 25 B 7T A7
i 2 H A 5T 4 8 A L -

HARXFR KGR —FF—FHH /N HIEAE
M b T AR - AR A R T AR ]
A AN AT T 452 0 e B > T E LB LA AR I i
2R A NN EA AT R
L5 ) 2 A0 R RZ 5F E ARt 2 I B A7) 4R
A AT T AT o
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued 23. R HE —
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s TRWE N E FF N T RF N
share options under the Pre-IPO Scheme during the years ended H = B k4 B A R 5 47 B T S s RE 5t ) A
30 June, 2002 and 2003: oS E 2 R 2 R
Lapsed Lapsed

Exercise price Balance at during Balance at during Balance at

Date of grant per share 1 July 2001 the year 30 June 2002 the year 30 June 2003

gt RZFF—F RZFZZE RZFZ=4F

T i i tH—H REERE AAZTHE REERE AA=TH
it A8 TR MR Z MR RBCZ MR MERZ MR CHE RACZMEMCHE AR N A b

HK$ (note) (note)
T (fif 7E) (fif 7E)

Directors of the Company
ARFAZESR
Dr. Chan Chok Ki 12 April 2001 0.60 1,800,000 - 1,800,000 - 1,800,000
PfE I S

WA+=H
Dr. Ma Chi Kit 12 April 2001 0.60 1,440,000 — 1,440,000 — 1,440,000
B E L “EL

WA+=H
Mr. Ho Ka Ho 12 April 2001 0.60 1,364,000 - 1,364,000 - 1,364,000
LECTL: S

WA+=H

4,604,000 - 4,604,000 - 4,604,000

Employees of the Group 12 April 2001 0.60 9,796,000 (676,000) 9,120,000 (1,628,000) 7,492,000
AR R “REAE

WA+=H

14,400,000 (676,000) 13,724,000 (1,628,000) 12,096,000

Note: These options lapsed upon the resignation of the grantees. B aE - A R RE TE R N BEAE AR R 2L -
No options had been exercised since the date of grant. At 30 B H R SN S SRR AT o R
June 2003, the number of shares in respect of which options TN H = H o ARRE I A R R
had been granted under the Pre-IPO Scheme represents 6.7% Pt 2 I RE 2 ey B A RZ H A A R 2
(2002: 7.6%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that BEATEA6.7% (. FE _F 1 7.6%) -

date.
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued 23

The Option Scheme was adopted on 12 April 2001 for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees for a term of ten years. Option may be granted
without any initial payment and should be accepted within 21
days from the date of grant. The subscription price, subject to
adjustment, is the higher of (i) the nominal value of the shares
of the Company; (ii) the closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the GEM of the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet (“Daily Quotation Sheet”) on date of grant; and (iii) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Daily Quotation Sheet for the five business days immediately

preceding the date of grant.

The option holder may subscribe for shares in the Company
during such period as may be determined by the directors
(which shall be not less than three years and not more than
ten years from the date of grant). The maximum number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted cannot exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to

time.

No employee or director shall be granted an option which, if
exercised in full, would result in such employee or director
becoming entitled to subscribe for more than 25% of the
aggregate number of shares for the time being issued and
issuable under the Option Scheme. No options had been granted

since the adoption of the Option Scheme.

. B HE — A
LN

R BT — T H = H PR A
FHEl 2 EEH W B R E R RS G E AR
PBRAE ) > A RON 5 A o W BRETE IP R S A
ARAT R IE 2 AK DL AR E] AR Sl R AR
HOH R FR 21 H AR o R R (] T )
B (DA R A A 5 (DA 2 B A TE R
HH S I 23S BRI AR 2 4 B R E R (T4 H
WAE R 2 el 5 R (ii) A A R AE
B BRI 2 5 Bk H IR ER
P2 T R (= DR R B ) -

W BCHE e A N AT TE R OE 2w S T A
RO AS AR Z ey (25 W A A3 0k 8 %
R =4 E A AE) o RZAF IR
Z W eV B 2 B e BE Oy BOH o AT AT R B AR
AT A 7 BB AT B 2 10% e

i I B B HE S A AT (o8 FRE T A MR %
fiE 5 5l 38 = HE 52 I A 5 M R ) R 2
BATEA T BT B HE &R EE25%
H o QAT 1) 00 55 % 10 I BEHE o 1 DR A I i
HEwH B LA A A B S S % o 0 R A
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24. RESERVES 24. M
Share Retained
premium profits Total
Ji& Ay ¥ 2L PR B8 i 1] A5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TH# T TH# T TH# T
THE COMPANY A
At 1 July 2001 N FEEFE—FLH—H 21,605 565 22,170
Profit attributable to shareholders Ji% S A Vs ) - 294 294
At 30 June 2002 W _EE_HFNH=TH 21,605 859 22,464
Profit attributable to shareholders Ji% SR A Yas - 63 63
At 30 June 2003 W _EFEE=FNH=1TH 21,605 922 22,527
In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available ARAFEERRS - R FEF=ZAFNA=1H

for distribution to its shareholders as at 30 June 2003 comprised

share premium and retained profits in aggregate amounting to

approximately HK$22,527,000 (2002: HK$22,464,000) provided
that, after distribution, the Company will be able to pay its

debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

AN R i) B HROUR A 2 e (B A R 103 Tk A
R v i F)) & L&) B 22,527,000 00 (FEE
TUAE 1 22,464,00005 J0) o MEASSS FAE IR A AR 51
JEATS A BE ST A % S A IE W SRS AR R
EIEE o ] URAT o

25. DEFERRED TAXATION 25. JEJiE i IH
THE GROUP
A< £
2003 2002
mggsEg BT A
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#It T#IT
Balance brought forward TR & Bk - 597
Credit for the year (note 9) A AR (B 7E9) - (597)

Balance carried forward

N
£
>
2
®
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25. DEFERRED TAXATION - continued . RERLIE —
At the balance sheet date, the major components of unprovided REER > REHZELERIE (5E) &6+
deferred taxation (asset) liabilities are as follows: FALRE R A 45 0E
THE GROUP
A4 H
2003 2002
e EL e
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T
Tax effect of timing differences U5 8~ 5 IEH B Z
attributable to: F2 P 2 B IH R 2
Development costs capitalised R A B AL 486 528
Excess of tax allowances over 4 Bl B B 4T 85 1 2 AR
depreciation 28 117
Unutilised tax losses ) oA B 2 BIE 1R (1,136) (900)
(622) (255)

Deferred taxation asset in respect of tax losses available to set

off future profits has not been recognised in the financial

statements as it is not certain that the asset will crystallise in

the foreseeable future.

AT LR B 1 2R i ] < il I s R 2 2 A B I A
E 7 SR 7 B B R 3R MR R R 0 R BE
E % B E g AR A A AR B

The amount of the net unprovided deferred taxation (credit) DU 2 48 2 A AR B 2 R B R H (4K 4e)
charge for the year is as follows: S 2 R
THE GROUP
A< £
2003 2002
—gRsEg S EEA
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#It Tt
Tax effect of timing differences SN IR=d  i
attributable to: 7 ih 2 Tl TH 5 28 -
Development costs capitalised E 3 N - N | 1) 528
Excess of tax allowances over G, ol B 4T 25 B 25 A
depreciation (101) 117
Tax loss arising T EE A 2 B IE i 4R (154) (900)
Effect of change in tax rate (e b X (GAY) =
(367) (255)

The Company had no significant unprovided deferred taxation

for the year or at the balance sheet date.

(SR N oY R MR I /NN N S 5
HEHESEBLIH -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TeleEye Holdings Limited
F E B #£# KR A R 2 §

M B HR RN E

Annual Report 2003 & 3§

For the year ended 30 June 2003 #{ % ~FE = 4E N H =+ H L4

26.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The subsidiary in Hong Kong participates in a defined
contribution retirement scheme (“MPF Scheme”) registered
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce contributions payable in

future years.

The employees of the subsidiary in the PRC are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiary is required to contribute 8% to 9%
of the basic salary of its employees to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit is to make the specified

contribution.

In addition to the participation in the above retirement benefit
schemes, the subsidiary in the United Kingdom and the
subsidiary in Singapore are required to contribute, respectively,
to National Insurance Contributions and Central Provident
Fund Scheme for certain of its employees in the United Kingdom
and Singapore based on applicable rates in accordance with the

relevant government regulations.

The total cost charged to income statement of approximately
HK$517,000 (2002: HK$376,000) represents contributions
payable to these schemes by the Group in respect of current

accounting period.

6. JB PR fE At k1

T 7 s 2 BB 2 T 2 BELAR A R A A B R
WA ) S ) RE R OB AR ET ) (R A & wt
) > B 2 AR 2 EE
BHARRA - T A SR B 2 8 B A R e — 44 0
SEAF FE N BB JE o AR 58 A S R A A A
ZHRUE > R T AR B A& A HERIEEE 2
bl A PR o i 3R B < ) IS AR SR R %
I8 7 & 4 3t i ZE K o AR SR TSI 4R T A
19 A AR AR R AT Bt R 2 R

A SR R B 2 W S R 2 AR B B R B
IRARAE AT 2 8 8 o wZ T # i R BT R
B oo W~ FH R LR B R A S 2 8% E
9% ] 12 PR A Il w0 1 e B3R o A L 45 AR IR AR
HIT A SR B RUZE AR A E ik -

BR 2 B | gl 3R R A R s A o g Bl B I
RTINS 2 B0 Jag 2~ ) 2B AR 05 e (B % T o 4 BT
ZIEA) - R E R 4y Bl 2y O b v A
# zZ % T & & I National
Contributions & Central Provident Fund

Insurance

Schemefit 3K °

TE R £ 2% A 1 BR 2 B8 AR %9517,00085 T (=

TEZAFE 1 376,000 70) £ AR F R A G 5
H TR ) A A 2 A
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27. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 27. REMA L
THE GROUP
A< 45
2003 2002
L EC I - S
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#t T#I0
Minimum lease payments made under operating & 4s 4F i [N A B ¥ 2£
leases in respect of premises during the year ZH AT 2 AR AR & L 4 1,560 1,209
At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for RAETH > A G A B 2E 2 S R EGH &
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable 2 LAY T ZELAE R 28 S AN 2 e AR AR 49 Al 465 2 7K
operating leases in respect of premises which fall due as follows: W R F] H BB
2003 2002
TREZS —EFFE_F
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#t T#I0
Within one year — AR 293 1,235
In the second to fifth year inclusive B ERBIE
(B B s 7EA) - 253
293 1,488
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the A 2 58 4 FHL 40 AH <5 4 AR B [ 2 R A = ) 3
Group for office premises. Leases are negotiated and rentals AT Z AR A o AR A K [E 2 L 4T 2 4 W AF
are fixed for an average of two years. E—IK e
The Company had no significant lease commitments at the AN T A H G M R AR o
balance sheet date.
28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 28. & AR if
THE GROUP
NS
2003 2002
ZEEZH “EE_HF
HK$°000 HK$°000
T # G T T
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition WY 2 - R T a
of property, plant and equipment contracted (E /T4 - fH ¥ RTE
for but not provided in the financial statements S R N ) 2 B A S 27 -
The Company had no significant capital commitments at the /NS T N = I L N < N

balance sheet date.
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29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 29. A AMH

At 30 June 2003, the Company had an outstanding guarantee
issued in favour of a bank of HK$5,000,000 (2002:
HK$5,000,000) for securing general banking facilities granted
to a subsidiary. The subsidiary did not utilise any of these

facilities at the balance sheet date.

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at the

balance sheet date.

R ER=FNRNH =T H » ANE R —fE
oS Al M 2 — A R AT A R ) — SR AT 4R
5,000,000%5 G (= FF — 4F : 5,000,000%5 JG)
WELR o AEEE B - % a4 w7 4 B AT o]
M55 SR AT & -

e L R I N e = R

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31. AL S
THE GROUP
AREH
2003 2002
S s S e
HK$’000 HK$’000
T TH T
Sales to an associate (note i) ) B B (M aEi) 739 292
Sales to City University of Hong Kong 1] 7 98 Ik R 2R (TR )) J

(“City University “) and its related parties HBR N L8 (ffF)

(note i) - 87
Interest income from an associate (note ii) =R - /N P SN N g At 3 2
Management fee to an associate (note iii) I6) B 5 8 ) S A B (i Atiin) - 44
Service fee to City University (note iii) I6) 39 K S A5 RS B (B Atiin) 33 35

CityU Enterprises Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of City
University, holds a 30% interest in Etin City Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.

Notes:

(i)  The selling price was determined by the directors with reference
to prices for similar transactions with unrelated third parties.

(ii) Interest was charged at 1% per annum.

(iii) The transaction was carried out in accordance with terms
determined and agreed by both parties.

£ A Etin City Limited (A A R 2 E2 KR 2
—) 30%HEdE < IR BZEARAF SR Z 2
g0y /AN

W -

() FEHRTES MR G SE = 0 g T eI 5 2 fE
W A% B 47 18 2 B AR -

Gi)  F B A K1%sTHE -

(i) 32 5 U5 1% Bt i A 5 7o 0 % JR) B 2 MO AT o
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RESULTS ES
Year ended 30 June
HWEANH=1THIE4EE
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
— g SEFEFERE R F R THE CREEZS
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TH# T TH# T TH# T TH# T TH T
Turnover e 12,907 16,440 18,471 17,005 26,447
Profit (loss) before taxation R B i A Ol 18) 3,717 5,413 1,876 (5,064) (1,272)
Taxation (charge) credit BLIE (G2 1) K R (565) (875) (298) 589 (30)
Profit (loss) before F00 5% 2D BB R E 2 AT
minority interest i A (5 18) 3,152 4,538 1,578 (4,475) (1,302)
Minority interest D e AR E A = = = 76 93
Profit (loss) for the year AR B A (B4R 3,152 4,538 1,578 (4,399) (1,209)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES M A
At 30 June
BRAH=Z1TH
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
— UL SEFRERERE R -F R CHFE CREFEZS
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TH# T T # T T # T TH# T T T
Total assets less current liabilities #8 & & 8 i B & 15 3,909 5,295 39,271 33,668 32,006
Non-current liabilities I Uik B & 1K - (298) (597) = -
Minority interest D 0 e R A = = = 66 167
Shareholders’ funds JBE R 4 3,909 4,997 38,674 33,734 32,173
Notes: Mt it
(1) The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 24 August (1) AN FER ZERERENH AU H R 2R
2000 and became the holding company of the Group on 11 April RSz > AR T — 4R Y AT AR A (4
2001 as a result of a group reorganisation (the “Group M A ) B —RE AN H +— H A
Reorganisation”) in April 2001. Z RS A o
(2) The results for each of the three years ended 30 June 1999, 2000, (2) BWE—NINE > ZBRTFE R TN H

and 2001 and the assets and liabilities as at 30 June 1999 and 2000
have been prepared using the merger method of accounting as if the
group structure immediately after the Group Reorganisation had been

in existence throughout the years concerned.

=+ HIE=A4FE A B Z B R — ILILILAE K
“EERENA=FHZEERABRER S
DR 7 325 T A0t S - 0 a5 B 7 4 A e AL A 5 R 4

— EAEA B AR B



TeleEye Holdings Limited
F E B B2 R A R 2 §

6 NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

BRRBFE KREBESE

Annual Report 2003 & 3§

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the AGM of the Company
(“AGM”) shall be held at Nova Room, Millennium City Club, Level
6, Tower 1, Millennium City I, 388 Kwun Tong Road, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, on Tuesday, 28 October 2003 at 10:30 a.m. for the

purpose of transacting the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1) To receive and consider the audited consolidated financial
statements and the reports of the directors of the Company
(“Directors”) and the auditors of the Company

(“Auditors”) for the year ended 30 June 2003.

2) To re-elect the retiring Director and authorise the board

of Directors to fix the remuneration of the Directors.

3) To re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
Auditors and authorise the board of Directors to fix their

remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without

amendments the following resolutions:

As Ordinary Resolutions

4) “THAT subject to and conditional on the Listing
Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Committee”) granting approval of the listing of
and permission to deal in, the Shares to be issued pursuant
to the exercise of options granted under the new share
option scheme (“New Scheme”), a copy of which has
been produced to this meeting marked “A” for the purpose
of identification, the terms of the New Scheme be and are
hereby approved and adopted and that the Directors be
and are hereby authorised to grant options thereunder to
subscribe for the shares in the Company (“Shares”) and
to allot, issue, distribute and deal with the Shares pursuant
to the exercise of options granted under the New Scheme
and to execute such documents and take all such steps as

may be necessary or desirable to implement the New
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5)

6)

Scheme and the Directors may vote in respect of any
resolution under or affecting the New Scheme
notwithstanding any interest of any of the Directors

thereunder.”

“THAT conditional on the passing of Ordinary Resolution
No. 4) set out in the notice of AGM dated 29 September
2003 (“AGM Notice”) of which this resolution forms part,
the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 12
April 2001, the principal terms of which are summarised
in the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in
Appendix IV to the prospectus of the Company dated 24
April 2001, be and is hereby terminated with immediate
effect without prejudice to the accrued rights of any

participants or grantees in such scheme.”

“THAT

a) a general mandate be and is hereby unconditionally
given to the Directors to exercise during the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) all the
powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal
with unissued Shares or securities convertible into
Shares or options, warrants or similar rights to
subscribe for any Shares and to make or grant
offers, agreements or options which would or
might require the exercise of such powers either
during or after the Relevant Period, in addition to
any Shares which may be issued from time to time
on a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined) or under
any option scheme or similar arrangement for the
time being adopted for the grant or issue of Shares
or rights to acquire Shares or any scrip dividend
pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company, not exceeding 20% of the aggregate
nominal value of the share capital of the Company

in issue as at the date of this resolution; and
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7)

b) for the purpose of this resolution, “Relevant
Period” means the period from the passing of this

resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

i) the conclusion of the next AGM of the
Company;
ii) the expiration of the period within which

the next AGM of the Company is required
by law or the Articles of Association of the

Company to be held; and

iii) the revocation or variation of the authority
given under this resolution by an ordinary
resolution of the shareholders of the

Company in general meeting;

and “Rights Issue” means an offer of Shares open for a
period fixed by the Directors to holders of Shares on the
register of members of the Company on a fixed record
date in proportion to their then holdings of such Shares
(subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the
Directors may deem necessary or expedient in relation to
fractional entitlements or having regard to any restrictions
or obligations under the laws of any relevant jurisdiction,
or of the requirements of any recognised regulatory body

or any stock exchange applicable to the Company).”

“THAT there be granted to the Directors an unconditional
general mandate to repurchase Shares, and that the
exercise by the Directors of all powers of the Company
to purchase Shares subject to and in accordance with all
applicable laws, be and is hereby generally and

unconditionally approved, subject to the following

conditions:

a) such mandate shall not extend beyond the Relevant
Period;

b) such mandate shall authorise the Directors to

procure the Company to repurchase Shares at such
price as the Directors may at their discretion

determine;
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c) the Shares to be repurchased by the Company
pursuant to this resolution during the Relevant
Period shall be no more than 10% of the Shares in

issue at the date of passing this resolution; and

d) for the purpose of this resolution, “Relevant
Period” means the period from the passing of this

resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

i) the conclusion of the next AGM of the
Company;
ii) the expiration of the period within which

the next AGM of the Company is required
by law or the Articles of Association of the

Company to be held; and

iii) the revocation or variation of the authority
given under this resolution by an ordinary
resolution of the shareholders of the

Company in general meeting.”

8) “THAT, subject to the availability of unissued share capital
and conditional upon the resolutions nos. 6) and 7) set
out in the AGM Notice of which this resolution forms
part, being passed, the aggregate nominal amount of the
Shares which are repurchased by the Company pursuant
to and in accordance with resolution no. 7) set out in the
AGM Notice shall be added to the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company that may be
allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be
allotted by the Directors pursuant to and in accordance

with resolution no. 6) set out in the AGM Notice.”

By Order of the Board
Dr. Chan Chok Ki
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 September 2003
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Notes:

In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM to be held on
28 October 2003, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Hong Kong branch share registrar
of the Company, Tengis Limited, at Ground Floor, Bank of East Asia
Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Waichai, Hong Kong not
later than 4:00 p.m. on 27 October 2003.

A member of the Company who is a holder of two or more Shares,
and who is entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to
appoint more than one proxy or a duly authorised corporate
representative to attend and vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a
member of the Company. Completion and return of the form of
proxy will not preclude a member of the Company from attending
the AGM and voting in person. In such event, his form of proxy will

be deemed to have been revoked.

A form of proxy for the AGM is enclosed. In order to be valid, the
form of proxy together with the power of attorney or other authority,
if any, under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy of such
power or authority, must be deposited at the Branch Share Registrar
of the Company in Hong Kong, Tengis Limited at Ground Floor,
Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Waichai,
Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for

holding the AGM or any adjournment thereof.

With regard to resolutions nos. 6) and 8) above, the Directors wish
to state that they have no immediate plans to issue any new Shares

of the Company.
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